
STAFF MEETING MINUTES  
LANCASTER COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

COUNTY-CITY BUILDING
ROOM 113 - BILL LUXFORD STUDIO

THURSDAY, JUNE 25, 2015
8:30 A.M.

Commissioners Present: Roma Amundson, Chair
Larry Hudkins, Vice Chair
Deb Schorr
Bill Avery
Todd Wiltgen

Others Present: Kerry Eagan, Chief Administrative Officer
Gwen Thorpe, Deputy Chief Administrative Officer
Brittany Behrens, Deputy County Attorney 
Dennis Meyer, Budget and Fiscal Officer
Dan Nolte, County Clerk
Cori Beattie, Deputy County Clerk
Ann Taylor, County Clerk’s Office

Advance public notice of the Board of Commissioners Staff Meeting was posted on the
County-City Building bulletin board and the Lancaster County, Nebraska, web site and
provided to the media on June 24, 2015.

The Chair noted the location of the Open Meetings Act and opened the meeting at
8:32 a.m.

AGENDA ITEM

 1 APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF THE JUNE 18, 2015 STAFF MEETING 

MOTION: Hudkins moved and Wiltgen seconded approval of the minutes of the
June 18, 2015 Staff Meeting.  Hudkins, Schorr, Wiltgen and Amundson
voted aye.  Avery was absent from voting.  Motion carried 4-0.  

 2 ADDITIONS TO THE AGENDA

A. Meeting with Nebraska Crime Commission on Legislative Bill (LB) 605
Grant Process

B. Process for Logging Correspondence Regarding Wind Farms 
C. Nebraska Association of County Officials (NACO) Board of Directors

Meeting

Page 1 BOC/STAFF/06/25/2015



D. Railroad Transportation Safety District (RTSD) Meeting 
E. Public Safety Finance Review Committee 
F. Prosper Lincoln

MOTION: Hudkins moved and Workman seconded approval of the additions to the
agenda.  Schorr, Wiltgen, Hudkins and Amundson voted aye.  Avery was
absent from voting.  Motion carried 4-0.

 3 A) REVISED BUDGETS FOR NEBRASKA CRIME COMMISSION
GRANTS; AND B) JOINT BUDGET COMMITTEE (JBC) FUNDING
RECOMMENDATIONS - Sara Hoyle, Human Services Director

A) Revised Budgets for Nebraska Crime Commission Grants

Sara Hoyle, Human Services Director, requested authorization to submit the revised
budgets for the Nebraska Crime Commission grants.

MOTION: Hudkins moved and Wiltgen seconded to authorize submission of the
revised budgets, with signature by the Chair.  Wiltgen, Hudkins, Schorr
and Amundson voted aye.  Avery was absent from voting.  Motion
carried 4-0.

Hoyle disseminated copies of 2015-2016 Juvenile Justice Review Committee (JJRC)
Funding (Exhibit A) and discussed some of the new programs receiving funding this
year.  She noted there is $136,169 in Community Aid funding that can be reallocated
because the County is no longer fiscally responsible for the reporting centers and
Project Hire, which predominately serves adjudicated youth.  Hoyle said the County
also received an additional $197,200 in Community Aid funds and said the JJRC is
working to determine funding priorities. 

B) Joint Budget Committee (JBC) Funding Recommendations

Hoyle presented Joint Budget Committee (JBC) Funding 2015-2016 (Exhibit B) noting
there are several new programs receiving funding.  She requested authorization to
proceed with the funding recommendations.

Avery arrived at the meeting at 8:39 a.m.

Wiltgen inquired about the funding split between the City and County.  Kerry Eagan,
Chief Administrative Officer, explained the City doesn’t have authority for human
services type contracts but said the County does under state statutes.  The funding is
discretionary.  Hudkins added the County has made progress over the years in making
the funding more equitable.

Page 2 BOC/STAFF/06/25/2015



MOTION: Schorr moved and Hudkins seconded to authorize Human Services
Administrator to develop the contracts, in consultation with the County
Attorney’s Office, based upon the funding recommendations that were
presented.  Avery, Hudkins, Schorr, Wiltgen and Amundson voted aye. 
Motion carried 5-0.

Hoyle reported that her office will be fully staffed, as of July 13th.  She indicated she
will retain administrative functions and the new Juvenile Justice Coordinator will
oversee direct services and contracts and will assist with grant writing.

Hoyle also requested authorization to submit to submit a grant application for the
National Association of Counties “County Leadership in Juvenile Justice Reform Action
Academy” to be held in October, 2015.  The grant would provide expenses for
a team of four members of the Lancaster County Juvenile Justice Team to attend. 

MOTION: Hudkins moved approval of the request.

Eagan cautioned the Board this item is not on the agenda.

There was consensus to schedule authorization to submit the grant application on the
June 30, 2015 County Board of Commissioners Meeting agenda.

 4 BLUFF ROAD INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT WITH CITY OF WAVERLY
- Pam Dingman, County Engineer

Pam Dingman, County Engineer, said the interlocal agreement for Bluff Road is in draft
form and said the engineering details are still being worked out.  She said Waverly’s
Mayor contacted her last July with concerns regarding dust on Bluff road during the
Camp Creek Threshers event.  Dingman agreed dust is a problem and said traffic
counts on the road warrant paving.  She said she had numerous discussions with the
City of Waverly through August and September and Bluff Road was moved forward to
Year 1 from Years 2-6 in the One and Six Year Road and Bridge Improvement Program
in October.  NOTE: Bluff Road has been listed on the One and Six Road and Bridge
Improvement Program for improvement since 1999.  Dingman said she had concerns
at that time that Waverly had not applied for a 404 Permit (a federal permit through
the Army Corp of Engineers that gives permission for construction in a wetlands or
waterway) for the low point in Waverly’s jurisdiction.  County Engineering  typically
bids construction projects in January but Waverly still had not provided a 404 Permit or
the design for the pipe.  She said she delayed the bids for 8-12 weeks hoping for
progress.  In April the City of Waverly authorized study and design of the pipe. 
Dingman said she and Commissioner Wiltgen met with Waverly officials two weeks ago
to discuss the project and how it should proceed.  She said received plans for a box
culvert at the low point on Monday and believes Waverly’s 404 Permit was submitted

Page 3 BOC/STAFF/06/25/2015



yesterday, noting 404 Permits typically take six months.  Dingman said she is not
comfortable putting the project out for bid since the 404 Permit has not been secured.  
She said she had planned to do an alternate bid for asphalt and concrete for this
project, mainly because Waverly would like their portion of the project to be concrete,
but said contractors’s dockets are full for this year.  Dingman felt it would be best to
put the project back in the bid package for January.  If Waverly is not ready with their
portion at that time, the project will be pulled. 

Dingman noted they recently discovered Northern Natural Gas has a gas line that
parallels the entire site.  Northern Natural Gas has indicated it will want its line
relocated if it is closer than 25' to the edge of pavement and has estimated the cost at
$700,000.  She said she will try to negotiate a lower cost but said if she is unsuccessful
the project is not feasible at this time.  Dingman also reported that County Engineering
has graded over the gas line for the entire length of the project.  Hudkins asked
whether the road could be redesigned.  Dingman indicated it could.

Wiltgen asked Dingman to discuss plans for the interlocal agreement going forward. 
Dingman said a “skeleton” interlocal agreement has been drafted.  She said Waverly’s
Engineer has asked her to bid the pipes so they can get a more competitive figure and
explained that is a detail that will be worked out through the interlocal agreement.

NOTE: Also present for the discussion were Mike Werner, Waverly Mayor; and Doug
Rix, Waverly City Administrator/Clerk. 

ADDITIONS TO THE AGENDA

A. Meeting with Nebraska Crime Commission on Legislative Bill (LB) 605
Grant Process

Eagan said Laurie Holman, Policy Analysis, Community Corrections Division, Nebraska
Crime Commission, has agreed to speak to the Board about the grant process.  There
was consensus to schedule the meeting on July 16th. 

Wiltgen exited the meeting at 9:05 a.m.

Eagan said the District Court Judges are interpreting LB 605 differently than the
legislative intent.  Eagan was asked to contact Douglas County to see how their judges
are interpreting the law and to review the legislative debate record to determine if the
Legislature’s intent was stated on the record.

Wiltgen returned to the meeting at 9:11 a.m.

Page 4 BOC/STAFF/06/25/2015



B. Process for Logging Correspondence Regarding Wind Farms
  
Schorr asked how correspondence directed to the County Board’s Office and
Lincoln/Lancaster County Planning Department is being logged and shared.  Gwen
Thorpe, Deputy Chief Administrative Officer, explained that correspondence coming
into the County Board’s Office is scanned into TRIM (electronic records management
system) and a copy forwarded to the Planning Department.  Any correspondence
personally received by Board members on this issue should be given to staff to be
entered into TRIM.  Thorpe said she will ask the Planning Department to forward any
comments it receives on the issue to the Board.

F. Prosper Lincoln

Schorr said the Prosper Lincoln Engagement Team is still gathering ideas on how to
make Lincoln a better place to live, noting the Mayor and County Board sent emails to
City and County employees asking them to participate in a survey.

 5 REQUEST TO PROHIBIT FISHING FROM FIRTH ROAD BRIDGE
LOCATED 1/4 MILE WEST OF SOUTH 96TH STREET - Pam Dingman,
County Engineer

Schorr explained constituents who live on Firth Road contacted her with concerns
regarding fishing from the Firth Road Bridge.  She said it is a major safety issue
because the public has been setting up lawn chairs along the highway and their
children have been darting across the road and halting traffic.  

Brittany Behrens, Deputy County Attorney, said provisions regarding restricting
activities on country roadways and highways were previously found in Nebraska
Revised Statutes, Chapter 39 (Highways and Bridges) and specifically addressed
fishing from bridges.  It has been moved to Chapter 60 (Motor Vehicles) and the
language is more broad with regard to restrictions.  She said it does not specifically
address fishing but addresses standing, walking and traveling about bridge and
highways and said the County Board, having jurisdiction over the roadway, has the
authority to police and create reasonable rules and regulations.  Behrens said the
County can post signs prohibiting parking or fishing from the bridge and it is
enforceable as a traffic infraction, which is a waiverable offense up to a $100 fine.  

Jeff Bliemeister, Chief Deputy Sheriff, appeared and said deputies would respond to
complaints and would try to get voluntary compliance.

Avery asked whether other counties regulate this.  Behrens said she has found
numerous counties that do.

Page 5 BOC/STAFF/06/25/2015



Hudkins expressed concern that it would set a precedent for fishing from other county
bridges, noting it is a common practice.  Behrens explained the County would only
have authority to place the traffic control devices on right-of-way over which the
County has jurisdiction.  The Board would have to pass a resolution approving the
placement of the traffic control device in order for their to be enforceability.  The
Board would have to determine what areas it would want policed.    

Wiltgen expressed concern regarding liability exposure if someone was injured at a
bridge that did not have a traffic control device.  Behrens said the need for such a
device would be determined on a case-by-case basis.  

Hudkins asked whether fishing would be prohibited from the bridge or right-of-way. 
Eagan said it would depend on the location and how the resolution is drafted.

Pam Dingman, County Engineer, said a bridge is not a safe place to be.  She said most
of the bridges lack shoulders and have traffic at a speed greater than 50 miles per
hour (mph).   

MOTION: Schorr moved and Wiltgen seconded to request the County Engineer to
visit the site and determine the best language for the sign, in
consultation with the County Attorney’s Office, to prepare an appropriate
resolution.

FRIENDLY AMENDMENT: Hudkins offered a friendly amendment to specify there is
to be no fishing from the bridge.

The maker of the motion did not accept the friendly amendment.

AMENDMENT: Hudkins moved and Avery seconded to specify there is to be no
fishing from the bridge.  Hudkins and Avery voted aye.  Schorr, Wiltgen and
Amundson voted nay.  Motion failed 2-3.

ROLL CALL ON THE ORIGINAL MOTION:  Schorr, Wiltgen, Avery, Hudkins and
Amundson voted aye.  Motion carried 5-0.

NOTE:  Also present for the discussion were Don Fosbender and Kevin Houfek,
adjoining landowners.

 6 BUDGET UPDATE: A) COUNTY ENGINEER; AND B) RAILROAD
TRANSPORTATION SAFETY DISTRICT (RTSD) - Dennis Meyer,
Budget and Fiscal Officer

Page 6 BOC/STAFF/06/25/2015



B) Railroad Transportation Safety District (RTSD)

Roger Figard, Railroad Transportation Safety District (RTSD) Administrator, gave an
overview of the following documents: 1) RTSD Cash Flow Projection, Based on
Increasing Levies in 2015 to 2018 Tax Rolls to Maximum 2.6 Cents; 2) RTSD Cash
Flow Projections Based on Varying Levies; and 3) RTSD 12-Year Capital Improvement
Program (CIP) (Exhibit C).  He noted the RTSD Board is asking the County to increase
the RTSD’s levy allocation to 2 cents next year. NOTE: The RTSD’s tax levy allocation
was 1.3 cent in 2015.  Figard said if the levy allocation is “bumped up” approximately
three tenths of a cent every year it will fund the current 12-Year CIP.  He noted the
12-Year CIP projects have been “slowed down” because of the levy allocation
reduction and said the goal is to get the levy allocation back to 2.6 cents as quickly as
possible.  Figard said the 12-Year CIP does not cover every project that is potentially
on the horizon, noting the City of Waverly has communicated the potential for
reconstruction or the addition of pedestrian facilities on the overpass on the west end
of their town.  He also pointed out a number of bridges and grade separations have
been built with RTSD money and said future maintenance is another consideration
when thinking about the future of the RTSD. 

Figard also discussed a project at the Burlington Northern Santa Fe (BNSF) railroad
tracks which intersect North 33rd Street and Adams Street, south of Cornhusker
Highway (U.S. Highway 6) (Exhibit D).

Schorr, who serves on the RTSD Board, noted the RTSD continues to receive requests
for “quiet zones” (railroad grade crossings at which trains are prohibited from sounding
their horns in order to decrease the noise level for nearby residential communities). 
She said there is also a new project going in at Hallam that could affect train traffic in
that area.

Hudkins said he was informed there may be a need to get new 404 Permits for the
South Bypass project.  Figard said the State is in the process of re-evaluating their
environmental document for the project.  He said that sets the proposed corridor up to
eventually be widened to a six-lane interstate without any additional right-of-way
acquisition or environmental work.  Figard explained that any time something changes
the footprint it requires them to go back and look at the other resource agencies.  He
said the Corp of Engineers has had significant concerns regarding the wetlands in the
corridor and said those need to be taken into account as an aggregate on the project
for all the rest of the environmental and historic resources.  Figard said while it’s an
issue that is being looked at, it is not a “fatal flaw” at this point.

Avery asked Figard if he is satisfied the proposal on the first page of Exhibit C.  Figard
said it is an improvement but still impedes the ability to move quickly with the North
33rd Street and Cornhusker Highway project. 

Page 7 BOC/STAFF/06/25/2015



A) County Engineer

Pam Dingman, County Engineer, said would like to build one bridge this year, noting
nine are in serious need of replacement.  NOTE: The County has not built a bridge in
three years.  Dingman said she has targeted the Firth Bridge, which has been in the
One and Six Year Road and Bridge Improvement Program since 2010, for replacement
at an approximate cost of $1,100,000.  She said she selected this bridge over the
Raymond Road Bridge, which has been in the One and Six Year Road and Bridge
Improvement Program since 1999, because that bridge has environmental issues. 
Dingman said she will deplete all the Sinking Funds by building just one bridge so if
there is a crisis involving another bridge then she will have to come and ask for more
money from the Board or close the road. 

Dingman also discussed grading and paving projects that she feels need to move
forward:

• Bluff Road, which has been in the One and Six Year Road and Bridge
Improvement Program since 1989 

• West Denton Road, from the edge of pavement at Southwest 12th Street to
the County line, which has been in the One and Six Year Road and Bridge
Improvement Program since 2000

• Old Cheney Road, from the edge of pavement at South 148th Street to the
County line, which has been in the One and Six Year Road and Bridge
Improvement Program since 2003

• North 27th Street from Arbor Lake to Waverly Road (grading only), which has
been in the One and Six Year Road and Bridge Improvement Program since
2010

Dingman said she will need to pull monies from a Sinking Fund that held Nebraska
Department of Roads (NDOR) Buyback Program funds for roads to complete the Bluff
Road, Denton Road and Old Cheney Road Projects.  She noted the County has
promised constituents these roads would be improved for over 15 years.  All of them
have significant traffic counts and Denton Road and Old Cheney Road have more than
400 vehicles per day.  Dingman said she budgeted for 20.8 miles of asphalt overlay
and 7.2 miles of new pavement.  The new pavement would be 0.2 miles on Agnew
Road and the Bluff Road, West Denton Road and Old Cheney Road projects.  She said
the County actually needs to pave 26 miles.

Dingman expressed concern that her budget is not tied to the One and Six Year Road
and Bridge Improvement Program.  She felt commitments to add projects should be
more realistically tied to what the County has the ability to build, with possibly a few
standby projects.  

Page 8 BOC/STAFF/06/25/2015



Dingman said she has modified the way County Engineering is constructing its projects
because some of the work her department was doing, such as shouldering the roads, 
backfilling culverts and erosion control, was voiding warranties.  As a result, some of
bids may be more expensive.

Dingman noted she requested a dramatic increase in the Highway (Maintenance) Fund
this year.  She said she is asking for approximately $4,900,000 for asphalt overlay.
NOTE: There is also a carryover of approximately $1,000,000 from the Highway Fund. 
Dingman said County Engineering had only been doing 10 miles of overlay each year
and is now 80 miles behind.  She said more asphalt is needed to stabilize the
investment in infrastructure or the County will end up with more situations like West
Van Dorn Street which is disintegrating.

Hudkins asked whether the portion of Bluff Road, east of Waverly, will be carried over
since funds were tentatively appropriated for that project this year.  Dingman said she
cannot guarantee the funding.  She said the project is estimated to cost $800,000 and
said she has requested funding for that project in this budget.

Dennis Meyer, Budget and Fiscal Officer, presented updated budget numbers for the
County Engineer (Exhibit E).  He noted Dingman has changed the way the department
is budgeting and now there will be transfers from the General Fund to both the
Highway Fund and Bridge and Road Fund.  Meyer said the County Engineer will need
an additional $2,600,000 to fund the projects she discussed and said he had only
accounted for approximately $600,000 of that figure in his deficit number.  

Schorr noted other projects that are occurring in the community and asked Dingman
whether she believes there is capacity for the work she has proposed.  Dingman said
she does provided that the work is bid in the spring.

Schorr then asked Dingman to prioritize the Bluff Road, West Denton Road and Old
Cheney Road projects.  Dingman said she would prioritize the projects as follows,
based on traffic counts and road conditions: West Denton Road, Old Cheney Road
then Bluff Road.  

The Chair recessed the meeting at 10:38 a.m. and reconvened the meeting at 10:46
a.m.

 7 DEPUTY SHERIFF CAPTAINS BENEFITS RESOLUTION - Terry
Wagner, County Sheriff; Jeff Bliemeister, Chief Deputy County Sheriff

Terry Wagner, County Sheriff, discussed a proposed resolution that would provide for
a 100% payout of sick leave into the Post Employment Health Plan (PEHP) for Sheriff
Captains upon their retirement to be in line with the benefit that is provided to Deputy

Page 9 BOC/STAFF/06/25/2015



Sheriffs.  He noted Deputy Sheriffs are governed by the Merit Commission statutes
that require all Deputy Sheriffs to receive the same benefits.  Wagner said a 100%
payout had been provided to a couple of Sheriff Captains over the last few years but
there was a “sunset” on the resolution that provided them that benefit.  He said Sheriff
Captains currently receive 55% of their unused sick leave.  Two of the five Sheriff
Captains are currently eligible for retirement and that is why the resolution is being
brought forward now.  Hudkins pointed out it will be difficult to get Deputies seek
promotion to the Captain rank and take on additional responsibility if they are treated
less favorably.

Jeff Bliemeister, Chief Deputy County Sheriff, estimated the budget impact at $45,000,
noting they anticipate the retirements would be spread over two budget years.  He
said they plan to absorb that cost in the budget.

Wiltgen inquired about the policy for other county employees.  Doug McDaniel,
Lincoln-Lancaster County Human Resources Director, appeared and said it varies by
union contracts but generally ranges from a 35-50% payout.  He said they are all
driven by comparabilities.  Wiltgen asked why Sheriff Deputies receive a more
generous benefit.  Eagan said most law enforcement agencies receive a defined
benefit pension.  He said  Lancaster County has a defined contribution plan and this is
a way to bridge the gap.

Kristy Bauer, Deputy County Attorney, appeared and said a provision relating to
parental leave was also removed because it didn’t comply with the Family and Medical
Leave Act (FMLA).  She said she will schedule the resolution on the June 30th County
Board of Commissioners Meeting agenda for action.

 8 ACTION ITEMS

There were no action items.

 9 CONSENT ITEMS

There were no consent items.

10 ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICER REPORT

A. Memorandum to Elected Officials and Directors Regarding Attendance
at Tuesday County Board Meetings (See Agenda Packet)

MOTION: Hudkins moved and Avery seconded to send the memorandum to elected
officials and directors, as drafted.  Wiltgen, Avery, Hudkins, Schorr and
Amundson voted aye.  Motion carried 5-0.

Page 10 BOC/STAFF/06/25/2015



Avery exited the meeting at 11:07 a.m.

B. Department Tours

There was consensus to tour departments on a biennial basis, beginning September
22nd.  

Avery returned to the meeting at 11:12 a.m.

There was consensus to discuss the tour schedule at the July 2nd Staff Meeting.  

C. Request from National Association of County Officials (NACo)
Regarding Resolution for Stepping Up Initiative

The Board scheduled a resolution in the matter of the “Stepping Up Initiative to
Reduce the Number of People with Mental Illness in Jails” Initiative on the June 30,
2015 County Board of Commissioners Meeting agenda and agreed to provide a copy of
the resolution to Mary Ann Borgeson, Douglas County Commissioner and Chair of the
NACo Health Steering Committee.

D. Reschedule Prudential Investment Review for October 1, 2015

Informational only.

E. Proclamation Recognizing September as Childhood Cancer Awareness
Month

The Board scheduled the item on the June 30, 2015 County Board of Commissioners
Meeting agenda.

F. Personnel Policy Board Appointment

Schorr disseminated biographical information for Tara Tesmer Paulson, an attorney in
the Rembolt Ludtke law firm, and suggested her appointment to the Personnel Policy
Board (see Exhibit F).

The Board scheduled appointment of Tara Tesmer Paulson on the June 30th County
Board of Commissioners meeting agenda.

G. Director Evaluations

Schorr presented a proposed schedule for director evaluations (Exhibit G). 

Page 11 BOC/STAFF/06/25/2015



H. Renewal of TRIM Maintenance Agreement

Amundson noted the County is in the second year of a three-year contract and said
Brittany Behrens, Deputy County Attorney, informed her the County has an obligation
to pay the $37,905 invoice submitted by Hewlett Packard (HP) (see June 4, 2015 and
June 18, 2015 Staff Meeting minutes).  She indicated the County can try renegotiate
the number of software licenses down to 125 for the third year of the contract. 
Thorpe cautioned that that may not be a sufficient number of licenses for the email
overlay.

Amundson outlined two options for the future direction of electronic records
management for the County (Exhibit H).  

Schorr noted she and Wiltgen are working with the County Clerk’s Office and Human
Resources to develop a job description for a position within that department that
would include electronic records management duties (see May 14, 2015 Staff Meeting
minutes).

MOTION: Schorr moved and Hudkins seconded to proceed with Option No. 2.

The following revisions to Option 2 were suggested:

• Change the word “that” to “whether” in the Objective line.
• Change the number “125" to “the appropriate number” in the second section

under Process.
• Indicate that “BSS” stands for “Business Systems Solutions” in the fifth

section under Process.

The maker of the motion and the seconder agreed to amend their motion to include
those revisions.

ROLL CALL:  Schorr, Wiltgen, Avery, Hudkins and Amundson voted aye.  Motion
carried 5-0.

There was consensus to process the HP claim and to schedule a TRIM demonstration
from Kapish.

11 PENDING

There were no pending items.

Page 12 BOC/STAFF/06/25/2015



12 DISCUSSION OF BOARD MEMBER MEETINGS

A. Lancaster County Fairgrounds Joint Public Agency (JPA) - Avery,
Wiltgen

Wiltgen said they approved expenditures.

B. Juvenile Justice Review Committee (JJRC) - Amundson

Amundson said the group discussed reallocation of grant monies.

ADDITIONS TO THE AGENDA

C. Nebraska Association of County Officials (NACO) Board of Directors
Meeting

Schorr said the focus of discussion was on NACO benefit services, the employee
insurance component.  She noted a decision was made many years ago that the three
larger counties, Douglas Lancaster and Sarpy County, would not participate in the
NACO insurance pool because their size could alter the ratings.  NACO is now asking
those counties to consider joining the pool because some counties moved to other
providers because of changes in the Affordable Care Act (ACA).  Schorr noted it may
be difficult because the larger counties have unions and NACO would be making
decisions on benefits.  Hudkins suggested consideration be given to a two-tier system. 
Board members indicated they would be willing to consider a proposal from NACO. 
Schorr said she will follow-up with Larry Dix, Nebraska Association of County Officials
(NACO) Executive Director, and Mary Ann Borgeson, Douglas County Commissioner.

D. Railroad Transportation Safety District (RTSD) Meeting 

See Item 6B.

E. Public Safety Finance Review Committee 

Schorr said the Public Safety Finance Review Committee, on which she had served, has
been asked to oversee the proceeds from a three year 1/4 cent increase in the City’s
sales tax for public safety improvements.

13 EMERGENCY ITEMS AND OTHER BUSINESS

There were no emergency items or other business.

Page 13 BOC/STAFF/06/25/2015



14 ADJOURNMENT

MOTION: Wiltgen moved and Hudkins seconded to adjourn the meeting at 11:55
a.m.  Avery, Hudkins, Schorr, Wiltgen and Amundson voted aye.  Motion
carried 5-0.

_________________
Dan Nolte
Lancaster County Clerk

Page 14 BOC/STAFF/06/25/2015




















































